
The Traverse Area District Library will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting upon at least 3 days’ notice to the Library. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should 
contact the Library Administrative Office by emailing publiccomment@tadl.org or calling 231-932-8500. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of Agenda
4. Public Comment*
5. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of December 14, 2023
b. Department Reports
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – February 6, 2024
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – February 6, 2024
e. Financial Report
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL
g. Friends of TADL Report – Jud Barclay, President
h. Correspondence

6. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar
7. Director Report
8. Presentation: Ashley Halladay-Schmandt, Northwest Michigan Coalition to End Homelessness
9. Old Business

a. Board Resolution in Support of Millage
b. Legal Agreements – Sondee Racine & Doren | DAR Law

10. New Business
a. RFP – Carpet
b. 2023 Year-end Review: Statistics |Financial | Strategic Plan Achievements
c. Discussion: Board Retreat Details

11. Public Comment*
12. Trustee Comment
13. Closed Session (if needed)
14. Adjournment

* If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are

recognized; (2) approach the podium and use the microphone; (3) state your name and the county and
township or city in which you reside; and (4) limit your comments to 3 minutes. Please sign in at the podium.

AGENDA
         Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Thursday, February 15, 2024 at 4:00pm 
McGuire Community Room 

610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, MI 49686 

mailto:publiccomment@tadl.org


 

(approved) 
Page 1 of 5 

 

    
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by President Odgers at 3:00pm. Present were: Odgers (President), 
Pakieser (Vice President); Deyo (Secretary), Jones (Treasurer), and Vickery (Trustee); Beuthin and 
Gedman (New Appointees). Also present were: Zeits (Council); Howard (Director); Baldwin, and 
Carpenter (Staff). 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

All members in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America.  

 
3. New Trustee Appointments: Jennifer Beuthin and Sam Gedman, Oath of Office 

Secretary Deyo administered the Oath of Office to new County appointees, Jennifer Beuthin and 
Sam Gedman. Each affirmed their oath, provided a brief introduction of themselves, and were 
welcomed to the TADL board by President Odgers.   
 

4. Approval of the Agenda 
It was MOVED by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Vickery, to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
CARRIED.   

 
5. Public Comment 

President Odgers opened the floor for public comment. There were none. 
 

President Odgers thanked the board, staff, the community, and especially Heather Brady, 
communications and marketing manager for a successful 25th birthday celebration of TADL at the 
Woodmere location and 155 years of library services in the Grand Traverse area.  It was well 
attended by the community and received good media coverage. 
 
It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Deyo, to call the annual meeting to order. Motion CARRIED. 

  
6. Annual Meeting 

a. Election of Officers 
The recommended slate of officers for 2024 was read by President Odgers consisting of: 
Pakieser (President), Jones (Vice President), Vickery (Secretary), Odgers (Treasurer). With the 
acceptance by the recommended officers and no other nominations made, it was MOVED by 
Beuthin, SUPPORTED by Jones to accept the 2024 slate of officers as presented. Motion 
CARRIED.  
 

b. Committee Appointments 
It was MOVED by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Gedman, to approve President Odgers’ committee 
appointments consisting of: Policy and Personnel Committee – Vickery (Chair), Gedman, and 
Beuthin; Finance and Facilities Committee – Odgers (Chair), Jones, and Deyo; and with the 
Finance and Facilities Committee meeting at 2pm on the first Tuesday of the month on an as 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
MINUTES 

Thursday, January 18, 2024 at 3:00pm 
McGuire Community Room 

610 Woodmere Ave., MI 49686 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 at 4:00pm 
Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

 



 

(approved) 
Page 2 of 5 

 

needed basis and the Policy and Personnel Committee meeting at 11:00am on the first Tuesday 
of the month on an as needed basis. Motion CARRIED. 
 

c. Approval of Board Meeting Schedule February 2024- January 2025 
It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to approve the 2024/2025 Regular Board 
Meeting Dates as presented. Howard noted that although the meetings are usually scheduled 
the third Thursday of the month, there are two exceptions this year. One, the October meeting 
will be held one week later due to the Michigan Library Association (MLA) Annual Conference 
being held in Traverse City his year and TADL is a host site for the conference reception, and 
two, the December meeting is scheduled one week early since the third week is too close to the 
holidays and trustees may not be available for a quorum. Gedman inquired about changing the 
time. Discussion was had and there was consensus to move to 4:00pm. Discussion was also had 
to finalize the location of the March study session and retreat, with consensus being at an 
outside location rather than at the library.  
 
With agreement by Jones and Pakieser, the original motion was amended, to move the meeting 
time from 3:00pm to 4:00pm, and to secure a room at Traverse Connect for the March meeting. 
Motion CARRIED. 
 

d. Approval of TADL Main Library and Branch Operational Hours and 2024 Closure Dates 
Howard noted that the closure dates listed are dictated by federal holidays and union 
negotiated dates. There is one addition this year to close on October 17th for the MLA Annual 
Conference and Reception. It was MOVED by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Jones, to approve the 
2024 library service hours and 2024/2025 library closure dates as presented. 
 

e. Approval of TADL Main Library and Branch Operational Hours and 2025 Closure Dates 
Howard noted the 2025 schedule is the same without the MLA conference closure date and is 
presented for approval because it is helpful to approve two years for scheduling purposes. It 
was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to approve the 2025 library service hours and 
2025/2026 library closure dates as presented. Motion CARRIED. 
 

f. Annual Conflict of Interest Statement | Annual Ethics Statement 
President Odgers asked the trustees to fill out both the annual conflict of interest statement and 
the annual ethics statement as indicated within policy and to return them to Carpenter for the 
record. 

 
It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Beuthin, to close the annual meeting and continue with the 
rest of the agenda. Motion CARRIED and President Odgers, as out-going president, handed the 
meeting over to incoming president, President Pakieser.  
 
President Pakieser acknowledged Odgers’ two year service as President of the TADL Board of 
Trustees and was presented with flowers and a thank you card. 
 

7. Consent Calendar 
a. Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting of December 14, 2023 
b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – did not meet 
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – did not meet 
e. Financial Report 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 



 

(approved) 
Page 3 of 5 

 

g. Friends of TADL Report – Jud Barclay, President 
h. Correspondence 

 
Jones requested to remove item f, Member Library Communications, for further discussion. Jones 
then MOVED, SUPPORTED by Odgers, to accept and affirm receipt of the consent calendar 
information as presented. Motion CARRIED. 

  
8. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 

Jones noted that Shurly, Director of Peninsula Community Library (PCL), was in attendance and 
thanked her for her attendance at most of the TADL meetings as well as providing her monthly 
written report.  
 
Shurly shared a written response to a member of her township government who did not understand 
the unique district library system and how PCL is funded. Shurly believes that the funding PCL 
receives through the member library agreement between TADL, a Class 6 library, and PCL, a Class 2 
library, assures services unheard of in most Class 2 libraries. She thanked the board for the annual 
member library payment. 
 

9. Director Report 

Howard highlighted the following: 
• Howard brought a resolution from the Michigan Library Association commemorating TADL’s 25th 

anniversary at the Woodmere location and 155 years of library service and a resolution from the 
U.S. House of Representatives read into the Congressional record by Representative Jack 
Bergman. 

• Howard was pleased to receive a supportive letter from Senator John DaMoose regarding the 
Larry Gorton Talking Book Library and accessibility items offered.  

• Howard attended the City Commission meeting and asked the Commission to look at the special 
land use request agenda item on extended overnight services for Safe Harbor in a holistic 
manner. She will keep abreast of how the issue progresses and update the board. 

• The strategic plan calls for focus in 2024 on Inclusive Space and Targeted Outreach. Howard will 
provide the board with a review of the 2023 strategic plan achievements at the February board 
meeting.  

• Michigan Library Advocacy Day will be held April 16th at the Sate Capitol. Trustees are 
encouraged to attend and meet with legislators. 

 
Beuthin suggested that the President of the Friends of the Library attend the Advocacy Day. She also 
thanked Howard and staff for the depth of the monthly departmental reports as they were helpful 
from a trustee’s perspective.  
 
A lengthy discussion was had regarding homelessness and supportive services, especially the 
proposed extension of Safe Harbor shelter services. There was consensus that the board would like 
to be proactive in this issue as much as possible. President Pakieser highlighted that the issue is a 
community issue and could be discussed further at the March Study Session and Retreat.  

 
10. Old Business 

a. Millage Dos and Don’t’s 
Zeits confirmed that the board had previously approved a resolution for the millage ballot 
language for a renewal to the original 1.1 mil request, technically a new increase. She stressed 
that public funds and resources may not be utilized to campaign for or against a ballot measure. 
She gave a background in common law, section 57 of the Campaign Finance Act, as it relates to 



 

(approved) 
Page 4 of 5 

 

the library millage and provided dos and don’ts actions for trustees and employees during the 
campaign. Although there are criminal penalties and civil fines for violations of section 57, the 
biggest consequence would be the effect on the proposal itself. She answered many questions 
from the board and provided helpful information and examples in response.  
 

11. New Business  
a. Resolution – 2024 Member Library Agreement Payments 

It was MOVED by Beuthin, SUPPORTED by Jones, to approve the 2024 Member Library 
Payments Resolution as presented. A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  
 Jones – aye  Odgers – aye   Pakieser – aye  Deyo – aye 
 Gedman – aye  Beuthin – aye   Vickery – aye  
Motion CARRIED with 7 ayes. 

 
b. Resolution – Annual Approval of Routine Invoices Over $25,000 

It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Odgers, to adopt the resolution for Annual Approval of 
Routine Invoices Over $25,000 as presented. A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  
 Jones – aye  Odgers – aye   Pakieser – aye  Deyo – aye 
 Gedman – aye  Beuthin – aye   Vickery – aye  
Motion CARRIED with 7 ayes. 
  

c. Legal Services Changes 
Howard noted that Zeits, legal counsel from Sondee, Racine & Doren PLC, has taken an in-house 
counsel position for the airport and TADL’s labor attorney Janice Adam from Danbrook Adams 
Raymond PLC, is retiring. Both firms have agreed to maintain the library as clients, with Jeffrey 
Jocks replacing Zeits and Lindsay Raymond replacing Adams under the current terms. Howard 
expressed that at this time, rather than pursing RFPs for legal services, she would like to remain 
with Jocks and Raymond. It was MOVED by Gedman, SUPPORTED by Jones to continue with the 
current law firms with the aforementioned new counsel as presented. A roll call vote was taken 
with the following results:  
 Jones – aye  Odgers – aye   Pakieser – aye  Deyo – aye 
 Gedman – aye  Beuthin – aye   Vickery – aye  
Motion CARRIED with 7 ayes. 
 

d. Discussion: Board Retreat Details 
Discussion was had around potential topics for the March board retreat, which included topics 
such as homeless shelter changes as it affects the library, a trustee refresher of useful 
information as it pertains to serving as a TADL board member, the role of public media and 
public spaces like the library, and the emerging role of public libraries in communities where 
school libraries are diminishing, among other topics. Beuthin suggested dispersing reading 
materials ahead of time. Howard will work on a final agenda and select some speakers and/or 
materials to include in the retreat.  

 
12. Public Comment 

President Pakieser opened the floor for public comment. There was none.  
 

13. Trustee Comment 
Beuthin and Gedman were welcomed by fellow trustees. Trustees who served with former trustee 
Wescott thanked him for his service on the board and appreciated the passion, intellect, and humor 
he brought to his role. Zeits and Adams were also thanked by the trustees for their time as legal 
counsel for TADL. Beuthin thanked the staff for the incredible birthday celebration and those 



 

(approved) 
Page 5 of 5 

 

involved in the library history book. Odgers noted that it was an honor for her to serve for two years 
as President of the TADL Board and thanked everyone for the flowers and card.  

 
14. Closed Session (if needed) 

A closed session was not needed. 
 
15. Adjournment 

With a motion to adjourn by Odgers, supported by Vickery, President Pakieser adjourned the 
meeting at 4:48pm.  

 
Respectfully submitted,   Approved by board vote on February 15, 2024 

 
 
 

V. Carpenter, Recording Secretary  M. Vickery, Board Secretary 
 



Departmental Reports
for the month of January

(February 15, 2024 Board Meeting)

Adult Services
● “Do you have tax forms?” The familiar sounds of Tax Season have begun for the

Reference Desk staff. TADL does receive and distribute hundreds of tax forms to the
public for free every year. But it’s never soon enough for some early bird filers.

● Partnership Highlights (Purposeful Partnerships):
○ TADL began a new partnership with Embody TC and Kristina Howes for free Yoga

classes every week. It’s an amazing opportunity to provide wellness options for
individuals in our community who might not be able to afford memberships to
facilities. TADL also purchased a collection of mats and props for attendees to use,
so the cost to participate is literally free for all. (Inclusive Space)

○ Inland Seas was back this month to offer a program about all the equipment they use
to monitor the Great Lakes waterways with their volunteer force. (Innovative
Engagement)

○ Our second installment of the Shelf-Aware Readers: Wellness Book Group was held
this month. 6 participants discussed the book Anti-Diet. Many thanks to the owners
of Head and Heart Therapeutic Services and Open Source Counseling for facilitating
these discussions.

○ Traverse Area Historical Society has begun their monthly local history programs for
2024.

○ The Senior Center Hobby Group and Current Events Discussion group continue to
meet weekly here at the library. (Inclusive Space)

● In January, the following programs were held (in addition to those listed above):
○ Our Great Decisions facilitator offered a 3-part discussion series about Immigration

this month. Registration filled up almost immediately for this program. Our
community loves to talk about current events!(Innovative Engagement, Inclusive
Space)

○ Besides the new yoga classes, we’ve also added Digital Drop-Ins (for tech
assistance) and a Spanish language conversation club.

○ Our two regular book discussion groups continue to see strong attendance - Books &
Brewskis had 25 attendees (Innovative Engagement) and Queer Tales (Inclusive
Space) had 6 participants.

○ Books to Movies, TADL Stitchers, and Tai Chi continue to meet regularly.
● January Adult Services Statistics:

○ Programs - 26 & Attendance - 200
○ Outreach - 3 & Attendance - 8 (Digital Literacy trips to Senior Facilities with TBL on

the Bookmobile)

https://catalog.tadl.org/main/details?id=48267440
https://www.tadl.org/event/books-brewskis-10729
https://www.tadl.org/event/books-brewskis-10729
https://www.tadl.org/event/queer-tales-book-club-12114


○ Questions Answered - 2239
○ Notary Signatures - 28
○ Craft Kits Distributed - 50 (Pleather card holders)
○ Friends Volunteer Hours - 60.4
○ Study Room Usages - 209

Local History Collection
● We received many compliments and comments on the various displays around the

library for TADL’s Anniversary this month. It’s a testament to Robin’s good work that so
many people enjoyed the items shared from the LHC for this event.

● We are also receiving many emails and phone calls regarding local organizations and
individuals who want to donate their materials to the LHC. We are so grateful that the
public trusts TADL and the LHC to preserve their history for future community use.

● Reference staff answered 5 local history questions in January.
● Citizen Historian volunteers logged 4 hours of work for the LHC.

Respectfully Submitted,
Melissa McKenna
Department Head, Adult Services

Youth Services
Youth Services was excited for the big birthday celebration for our building and celebrated it in
many ways, including:

● Creating a giant birthday card that our youngest patrons could sign or draw on;
● Hosting a birthday storytime with new Early Literacy Librarian, Kate Parvel;
● Hosting a passive birthday hat craft; and,
● Theming our January Scavenger Hunt after TADL Main’s 25th anniversary: 386 children

participated in this birthday themed activity.

We also celebrated Dr. Martin Luther King’s birthday with a storytime
hosted by Youth Services staff member, Rosie Vreeland-Flickinger, and
Marshall Collins, from Northern Michigan E3. Miss Rosie and Department
Head Andy Schuck conducted interviews with 9 & 10 News highlighting the
library’s role in bringing our community together to celebrate Dr. King’s
messages of connectedness and inclusiveness. This event engaged 65

community members.

We also continued our annual relationship with the Traverse Symphony Orchestra, TSO Tots @
TADL. This monthly program is hosted January through April and features a different orchestra
instrument each month, along with a picture book story read by TADL staff, and a musical craft
families can do after the program. This month’s event engaged 86 community members.

We also welcomed 50+ teams of 4th and 5th graders on a snowy Friday night
(but not too snowy!) for the annual Battle of the Books team kickoff. Teams got
to know each other through crafts and challenges and learned about the 8 books
they’ll be reading for the competition. Department Head Schuck helped to select



this year’s titles, acted as touchstone for the kickoff planning team, and will be a judge at the
Battle of the Books Team Battle Day in April. 300 community members joined us for this event.

Youth Services also participated inWinterFest at the Grand Traverse County
Civic Center toward the end of January. Staff members Andy Schuck and
Amanda Tobian brought the Bookmobile and spent lots of time making snow art
with colored mist, snow sculptures, and pretzels and raisins. Patrons also
enjoyed getting a look at the Bookmobile and checking out a plethora of items,
including books and STEM Kits.

Early Literacy Librarian Kate Parvel has been busy with outreach, driving the Bookmobile to
schools and daycares throughout our community. Among her visits, Kate has been to the
Traverse City Preschool Co-op, the Blair GSRP, the Long Lake GSRP, the Silver Lake GSRP,
Westwoods Elementary, and the Grand Traverse Baby Pantry. Kate has really embraced the

outreach portion of her position and we’re a better department for it!

Winter Reading Club is also running and while not as popular as the Summer
version, it has still drawn a healthy amount of readers and families looking for
reading challenges. We also drew names for our January challenge winners-
and you can see a picture here of the prize winner and his prize (he’ll really
enjoy it when there is finally snow on the ground)!

Here are the department statistics for January:
● Early Literacy programs: 25
● Early Literacy attendance: 357 (39% increase over January 2023)
● Afterschool programs: 24
● Afterschool attendance: 1,379 (almost 11% increase over January 2023)
● Reference Questions:

○ Digital: 13
○ Phone: 108
○ Walk-in: 1,105
○ Total: 1,226 (7.8% increase over January 2023)

● Self-Directed (passive) Activities: 7 total activities with 489 participants
● Winter Reading Club:

○ Signups: 130
○ Active participation in Beanstack: 69

● STEM Kit Statistics: 306 checkouts with 129 holds on STEM Kits
○ Fun STEM Kit Statistics for 2023:

■ Total STEM Kit circulations: 3,631
■ Most popular (Dec & Jan): Survive the Quake, Spero Mini, Q-Ba Maze,

Gravitrax, Code and Go Robot Mouse, EyeClopse Digital Microscope
■ Most holds (Dec & Jan): Marble Race Super Set, Rocket Circuit Explorer

Thank you for reading our updates!

Andy Schuck
Head of Youth Services



Teen Services
After getting multiple requests for more lock-ins, we decided to try a winter one at the end of
January. We had the normal lock-in pizza and snacks but changed it up to include a hot
chocolate bar and a snowball fight. The snowballs were made out of fleece and stuffing by our
teen volunteers. The fight was a lot of fun and set the mood for the evening. We had 34
attendees, lots of laughter, much running around, amazing art, and teens stepping outside their
friend groups. It was a lot easier to run than the all night lock-in; I think this may become an
annual addition to our regular teen programs.

Our teen writing group has had consistent attendance over the last two years. I believe this is
due in no small part to facilitator Jaquie Burke. She brings the enthusiasm and structure that
these budding writers need. The attendees have chosen to name themselves the Twisted Quills.
Their next task in establishing their identity as a group will be to create a logo. I look forward to
sharing it with you in the future.

Linda Smith
Head of Teen Services

Sight & Sound
Sight & Sound started off the new year right! The Woodmere birthday event on January 10th
was amazing, with a bagpiper and a plethora of speakers. We were proud to be able to
livestream this event to several of the library’s social media pages, thanks to the help of our
Tech team. Our partnership with the Cherryland Amateur Radio Club is picking up steam as well
- they are providing free classes for Level 1 (Technician) Amateur Radio Licenses. Youth
Services had an awesome turnout for their Battle of the Books kickoff event too!

January Reference Questions

Digital: 140
Phone: 284
Walk-in: 1591

TADL Meeting Room Stats JANUARY 2024

Total: 166
TADL meetings: 23
Personal/Outside Group Meetings: 143
Paid Meetings: 5
Unpaid Meetings: 161
Walk-ins: 20
Advance Reservation: 146

Number of Meetings by Room JANUARY 2024

McGuire Room: 31



Thirlby Room: 63
Study Room D: 72

Respectfully Submitted,
Josh Denby
Department Head, Sight and Sound

Circulation
The new year and new lending policy seemed to bring a new surge in patron holds and we’ve
been staying very busy in circulation! All of the programs, events, and especially the big
Birthday Celebration have ensured our welcome area has been buzzing with activity throughout
January while we continue to serve our patrons in their everyday needs.

January Circulation Numbers - Combined Branches (Woodmere, Kingsley, East Bay)
New patron accounts created: ↓259 (vs 285 last year)
Curbside pickups for January 2024: 16
Circulation Statistics for MeLCat, January 2024:

● TADL items sent to borrowing institutions: ↓1519 (vs 1617 last year)
● TADL items received from lending institutions: ↓2422 (vs 2448 last year)

Respectfully Submitted,
Christina Meyers
Head of Circulation

Marketing and Communications
The Woodmere birthday celebration and our
new circulation record (innovative
engagement, targeted outreach) was front
and center at the start of the year, we had a
great turnout for the recognition ceremony
and foot traffic was steady throughout the
day. Thank you to everyone who helped
make it happen and make it festive! (Our
livestream was also a success.(Inclusive
space) I felt fortunate to hear so many great
stories about our community and library
history. Everything is down and all history
displays are being prepped for their new life
as virtual exhibits on tadl.org (inclusive
space). Summer reading preparation (all
plan areas) is already well underway but of
course there are plenty of great events in
line for the next few months. Plus, new swag will be arriving with the 155 logo - a limited edition
for this year only.



I’m happy to say the newsletter continues to make progress, breaking the 38% barrier for the
first time in 2023. (Over 38.8% of people receiving it opened it.) Readership has more than
doubled over the last three years.

Website: Pageviews 57,923 (We average about 31 viewers a minute on tadl.org.)
Press: TADL appeared in a publication for 24 of the 31 days in January.

Heather Brady
Marketing & Communications Manager

Human Resources
Please join me in wishing congratulations to our new hires and internal transfers/promotions, and
best wishes to employees leaving TADL!

Employee Position Transfers:

Matt Archibald
FT Library Assistant 1, East Bay
(Previously FT East Bay Manager)

Chantel Lentz
FT East Bay Branch Manager

(Previously FT Libr Asst 1, East Bay)

Employee Departures:
Anne Yambor, Substitute

Respectfully submitted,
Danielle Baldwin, Finance and Human Resources Manager

Facilities
January tasks were dominated by addressing the cold weather and snow (maintaining ice-free
sidewalks), but the weather gave additional evidence that the roof repairs have been effective;
there was minimal icicle buildup along the eaves. There was also preparation for our 25th
Anniversary event, and ongoing support for our STT Security Officers who face more challenges
with inclement weather. Other highlights include:

● Finalized server room HVAC integration with Building Control System (BCS)
● Worked with Smart Building Services (SBS) to adjust new BCS for extreme cold weather
● Verified shop drawing measurements and material colors for Bathroom Renovation
● Updated Emergency Procedures with new contact information



● Facilitated new shelves at East Bay, removed old ones
● Additional donor bench added to front flagpole area
● Moved three donated map drawers/flat file cabinets from LIAA to Woodmere
● Annual full test of Fire Alarm System with Summit Fire Protection
● Facilitated Friends of the Library rare book organization
● Obtained measurements for spot carpet replacement

Respectfully submitted,
Bret R Boulter, Facilities Manager

TADL Talking Book Library
January is Braille Literacy month. January 4th is World Braille day in honor of Louis Braille’s
birthday.

I had a student from Cherry Knoll Elementary School stop by. She is doing a braille presentation
at the school science fair. I gave her some braille activity sheets, alphabet cards, and lent her
the Perkins Brailler.

Notary request-13

Tuesdays @ Two read “Someone Else’s Shoes” by Jojo Moyes.

Anita Chouinard
Talking Book LIbrary Manager

East Bay Branch Library
January marked the completion of our new shelving project in the youth room at East Bay. Over
the past two years we've been replacing the bulky cube shelving that's been here for many
years, with beautiful wood shelves that hold more material, take up less floor space, and look
great! Special thanks to Bret Boulter for his assistance with this project, and to Matt Archibald
for his vision and planning!

Before After

We also kept busy with our regular programming including Tai Chi, Adult Coloring Night, weekly
Sing & Stomp Storytimes, a Teen Escape Room, and 15 patrons attended our book club for a
very engaging discussion of The Dictionary of Lost Words by Pip Williams.



After working for TADL in various roles over the last eleven years, I am very excited to be
stepping into the management position at East Bay, and looking forward to all our team will
accomplish together.

Respectfully Submitted,

Chantel Lentz
Branch Manager



 

Board Member Roster – Susan Odgers, Chair ; Joseph Jones ; Paul Deyo 

 

 

 

TADL Board of Trustees 

Finance & Facilities Committee 
AGENDA 

 
February 6, 2023 

2:00pm ~ Thirlby Room 

 
610 Woodmere Ave. / Traverse City, MI / 49686 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order 

 

Approval of the Agenda 

 

Approval of the Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes of December 5, 2023.  

 

Public Comment 
If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are recognized; (2) 

state your name and the county and township or city in which you reside; and (3) limit your comments to 5 minutes. 

 

Finance: 
• Presentation: Tony Radjenovich, MERS – Total Liability Calculator 
• Board Resolution in Support of the Millage 

 
Facilities:  

• Facilities Updates: 
o Bathroom 
o Insulation & Sheet Metal 
o Roof 

 

Next Meeting Date / Time – No meeting in March | April 2, 2024 

 

Next Meeting Topic Suggestions 

 

Public Comment 
If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are recognized; (2) 

state your name and the county and township or city in which you reside; and (3) limit your comments to 5 minutes. 

 

Adjournment 

 



Board Member Roster – Michael Vickery, Chair ; Sam Gedman ; Jennifer Beuthin 

 

 

 

TADL Board of Trustees 

Policy and Personnel Committee 
AGENDA 

 

February 6, 2024 
11:00 am ~ Thirlby Room  

 
610 Woodmere Ave. / Traverse City, MI / 49686 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order 
Approval of the Agenda 
Approval of the Policy & Personnel Committee Minutes from October 3, 2023 
 

Public Comment 
If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are recognized; (2) 

state your name and the county and township or city in which you reside; and (3) limit your comments to 5 minutes. 

 
Policy Committee: 

• Policy 4.6 Public Meeting Room Policy Discussion: change the policy to allow for Free 
Will Offering 

• Safe Harbor – TADL History 
o 4.1 Behavior Policy 

 
Personnel Committee (no topics for discussion) 
 
 

Next Meeting Date / Time – No meeting in March | April 2, 2024 

 

Next Meeting Topic Suggestions 

 

Public Comment 
If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are recognized; (2) 

state your name and the county and township or city in which you reside; and (3) limit your comments to 5 minutes. 

 

Adjournment 



 

Financial Report Analysis for January 2024 

   

Revenue 

We have received 50% of our budgeted Property Tax revenue as of 1/31/24 and payments are continuing to be 

received regularly.  I expect these to continue in February and early March, after which time each township will 

send remaining unpaid balance reports to the County, who will then disburse the remaining to us, usually in late 

April.  We received half of the Antrim County allotment for Talking Book Library services provided by TADL and 

will receive the remaining $2,262.50 later this year.  Our Investments are showing great positive numbers, as 

the markets have been doing very well lately. 

Expenditures 

Note that percentage of budget completed is 8.33% as of 1/31/24.  Line item details of note are below. 

• Personnel 

You'll observe that numerous personnel-related entries 

fall below the 8.33% target. These encompass payroll-

driven expenditures such as wages, FICA, and retirement. 

The first payroll of each year is always accrued back to 

the previous year. This year, the payroll paid on 1/5 

covered the pay period from 12/17 to 12/30.  The other 

personnel expenses are insurance benefits and are 

prepaid one month ahead.  Medical also includes our 

annual employer contribution to HSA accounts, which is 

why Medical is higher than other line items. 

• Supplies 

Expenditures for Books/Media/etc is currently 12.57% of 

budget due in part to annual Prepaids, which are 

expenses with invoices paid last year for services that 

cross fiscal years and as such are applied to budgets 

accordingly.  Additionally, we are invoiced in January 

annually for our EBSCO periodicals.  And while many of 

our databases are paid monthly, we have a few that are paid annually in January. 

• Other Services/Charges 

A majority of this category’s budget lies with payments to Member Libraries, which were approved by the 

Board for disbursement in January.  As a result, this category shows 47.5% of budget spent.  As the year 

unfolds, expenditures will start aligning closer to target budget percent.  Additionally, annual Prepaids 

paid to vendors in 2023 for services that cross fiscal years are reflected in various categories such as 

Professional/Contractual Services and Communications. 

• Capital Outlay 

The electric-assisted book bike was ordered in Summer ’23 and while we originally expected to receive it 

by year-end that did not come to pass.  As a result, the deposit expense paid in 2023 has been transferred 

to Prepaid expenditures resulting in 2024 realizing 100% of the expenditure.  Receipt should now be May. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Danielle Baldwin 

Finance and Human Resources Manager 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Revenue Personnel Supplies Other
Svcs

Capital
Outlay

TADL Budget as of 1/31/2024

 YTD  Budget Remaining  Goal



2/7/2024 8:24:44 AM Page 1 of 2

Budget Report
Traverse Area District Library Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 01/31/2024

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityRevenueCategory;SubCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Used

Revenue

400 - Property Taxes - Current/Delinquent/Pilt 3,084,916.523,084,916.526,155,304.00 6,155,304.00 -3,070,387.48 50.12%

500 - Grants - Federal/State/Other 2,262.502,262.5029,450.00 29,450.00 -27,187.50 7.68%

540 - State Aid Grant - Library 0.000.00107,468.39 107,468.39 -107,468.39 0.00%

541 - State Aid Grant - TBL 0.000.0041,073.00 41,073.00 -41,073.00 0.00%

581 - Penal Fines 0.000.00150,900.00 150,900.00 -150,900.00 0.00%

602 - Fees/Services 0.000.0029,650.00 29,650.00 -29,650.00 0.00%

607 - Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 2,448.242,448.2418,000.00 18,000.00 -15,551.76 13.60%

642 - Sales 2,829.672,829.6722,650.00 22,650.00 -19,820.33 12.49%

653 - Meeting Room Rental/Equip Fees 400.00400.002,000.00 2,000.00 -1,600.00 20.00%

665 - Interest & Gains/Losses 8,116.498,116.497,500.00 7,500.00 616.49 108.22%

674 - Donations/Contributions 545.54545.5426,200.00 26,200.00 -25,654.46 2.08%

676 - Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 1,365.101,365.10505.00 505.00 860.10 270.32%

3,102,884.063,102,884.066,590,700.39 6,590,700.39 -3,487,816.33Revenue Total: 47.08%

Expense

Category: 70 - Personnel

700 - Salaries & Wages 97,461.9997,461.992,839,018.45 2,839,018.45 2,741,556.46 3.43%

710 - Social Security/Medicare 2,303.882,303.8864,850.22 64,850.22 62,546.34 3.55%

712 - Medical Insurance 107,935.30107,935.30457,387.50 457,387.50 349,452.20 23.60%

713 - Dental Insurance 4,511.394,511.3927,149.51 27,149.51 22,638.12 16.62%

715 - Vision Insurance 781.84781.844,078.20 4,078.20 3,296.36 19.17%

716 - Life Insurance 1,472.461,472.469,397.40 9,397.40 7,924.94 15.67%

717 - Disability Insurance 2,612.942,612.9416,268.03 16,268.03 13,655.09 16.06%

720 - 401K Retirement Contribution 4,015.924,015.92131,106.14 131,106.14 127,090.22 3.06%

721 - MERS Defined Contribution Retirement 6,683.346,683.34185,086.79 185,086.79 178,403.45 3.61%

722 - MERS DB Unfunded Liability 10,000.0010,000.00120,000.00 120,000.00 110,000.00 8.33%

723 - Worker's Compensation 0.000.008,300.00 8,300.00 8,300.00 0.00%

237,779.06237,779.063,862,642.24 3,862,642.24 3,624,863.18Category: 70 - Personnel Total: 6.16%

Category: 72 - Supplies

728 - General Operating Supplies 14,093.8814,093.88217,350.00 217,350.00 203,256.12 6.48%

736 - Repair & Maintenance Supplies 654.34654.3416,750.00 16,750.00 16,095.66 3.91%

741 - Books/Media/Online Resources/LoT 94,240.4794,240.47749,705.00 749,705.00 655,464.53 12.57%

108,988.69108,988.69983,805.00 983,805.00 874,816.31Category: 72 - Supplies Total: 11.08%

Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges

801 - Professional & Contractual Services 77,642.8477,642.84336,360.00 336,360.00 258,717.16 23.08%

804 - Advertising & Outreach 597.92597.9243,500.00 43,500.00 42,902.08 1.37%

807 - Insurance & Bonds 450.00450.0030,574.49 30,574.49 30,124.49 1.47%

809 - General Equip/Building/Grounds Maintenance 18,498.3618,498.36328,730.00 328,730.00 310,231.64 5.63%

850 - Communications 4,475.634,475.6328,500.00 28,500.00 24,024.37 15.70%

921 - Utilities 1,286.291,286.29114,800.00 114,800.00 113,513.71 1.12%

955 - Education & Travel 4,134.144,134.14129,947.66 129,947.66 125,813.52 3.18%

959 - Member Library Allocations 718,841.00718,841.00718,841.00 718,841.00 0.00 100.00%

961 - Misc 0.000.001,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00%

964 - Property Tax Reimbursements 0.000.006,500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00%

825,926.18825,926.181,739,253.15 1,739,253.15 913,326.97Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges Total: 47.49%

Category: 97 - Capital Outlay

971 - Capital Furniture/Equipment/Building 2,825.002,825.005,000.00 5,000.00 2,175.00 56.50%

2,825.002,825.005,000.00 5,000.00 2,175.00Category: 97 - Capital Outlay Total: 56.50%

1,175,518.931,175,518.936,590,700.39 6,590,700.39 5,415,181.46Expense Total: 17.84%

Report Surplus (Deficit): 1,927,365.13 1,927,365.130.00 0.00 1,927,365.13 0.00%



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 01/31/2024

2/7/2024 8:24:44 AM Page 2 of 2

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

101 - General Fund 1,927,365.131,927,365.130.00 0.00 1,927,365.13

Report Surplus (Deficit): 1,927,365.13 1,927,365.130.00 0.00 1,927,365.13



 FEBRUARY 2024 DIRECTOR’S REPORT – VICTORIA SHURLY 

In case you wondered, Gen Z and Millennials are using public libraries – both in person and digitally – 
at higher rates than older generations according to an ALA report released in November.  While PCL 
still serves a mostly older population of retirees, we too have noticed an upswing in the number of 
younger people utilizing our services and attending our programs.  An interesting fact?  Those younger 
generations prefer physical books over digital. 
 
Over 2/3 of the tickets for our 18th annual Books at the Boathouse fundraiser scheduled for April 22 
are sold!   Help us to sell out.  Tickets are $125 per person, available at PCL and include wine, 
appetizer, salad, main entrée and dessert.  All funds earned support PCL.  Several people have 
purchased tickets and returned them to PCL to be donated to patrons who could not otherwise afford 
to attend! 
 
Winter blues set in?  Hugh Pool will be at PCL as a part of his Cabin Fever Mini Tour, February 19th at 7 
p.m.  Join us for a cup of chili and music that harks back to 60’s blues.  Pool has played in 20 countries, 
has numerous movie credits and is a member of the New York Blues Hall of Fame as a Master Artist!  
Both concert and chili are free of charge.   
 
Beginning February 15, we will be hosting an exhibit of a beautiful Signature Quilt made in 1892.  The 
quilt was a project of the Ladies Aid Society of the Methodist Episcopal Church of Old Mission and 
contains many family surnames that appear in the history of Old Mission.  The quilt is on loan from the 
Archer/Sargent/VanBrocklin family.  Related photographs and documents will be on display as well 
through March.   
 
Michigan Mysteries! Ross Richardson shares fascinating stories of missing persons, aircraft & ships   
2/22 at 6:30 p.m.  This hour-long program explores some lesser known mysteries & offers updates on 
efforts to solve them.   
 
Peninsula Insights hosts Alison Metiva, the CEO of the Grand Traverse Regional Community 
Foundation, February 21 at 7 p.m.  All are welcome! 
 

PCL Fun Fact:  PCL holds an amazing Local History collection of early Old Mission plat maps, letters 
from farm families, postcards and more.  The map case in our Local History Room was donated by the 

Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and Chippewa Indians.   
 

Circulation Jan 2024 1987 + 83 manual checkouts, Jan 2023: 2418 

Jan Volunteers: 15 people (1 teen), 29 hours of time to PCL  

Curbside pickups: 2.  Home delivery:  0.   New library cards:  9 

Hold Transit Counts Jan: 798 to other libraries from PCL, 366 from other libraries to PCL  

Programs Jan: 26   Participation Jan: 567    Reference Questions:  357 

Website Hits: Not available this month Twilight Baby Bags: 1, 1000 Books Before Kindergarten: 1 
Meeting Room Reservations:  7 

 
PENINSULA COMMUNITY LIBRARY 2893 ISLAND VIEW ROAD, TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686  231-223-7700   

www.peninsulacommunitylibrary.org 
Like us on Facebook – Peninsula Community Library 

http://www.peninsulacommunitylibrary.org/
























 

 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, MCL 397.183 authorizes district libraries to impose and levy ad valorem property 

taxes for district library purposes on the taxable value of property in the district in an amount not 

to exceed 4 mills if approved by a majority of the qualified electors voting on the question; and  

 

WHEREAS, in 1996, the Traverse Area District Library electors approved a Library Millage of 

1.1 mills for the purpose of providing library funds for the Traverse Area District Library; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the Travere Area District Library electors approved a renewal of the 

previously approved millage at 0.9548 mills, which was the amount the previously approved 

millage had been reduced to as a result of the “Headlee Rollback” (the “2016 Millage”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Millage has been reduced further to .9044 mills; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Traverse Area District Library Board wishes to obtain voter approval to levy up 

to the amount of the previously approved millage of 1.1 mills beginning with the 2024 levy 

instead of and as a replacement for the 2016 Millage for the purpose of providing funds for all 

district library purposes authorized by law for a period of 10 years; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to submit the Library Millage proposal to the Traverse 

Area District Library’s electors at the regular election to be held on August 6, 2024 (the “August 

Election”); and 

 

WHEREAS, in order for the Library Millage proposal to be submitted at the August 2024 

Election, it is necessary for the Board to adopt and certify the wording of the Library Millage to 

the County Clerks of Grand Traverse County and Leelanau County, State of Michigan as 

required by the Michigan Election Law and the District Library Establishment Act, MCL 

397.185(2); 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Traverse Area District Library Board  

heartily supports the following millage ballot question language to be placed on the August 6, 

2024 election ballot to be submitted to a vote of the qualified electors of the Traverse Area 

District Library: 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

Supporting Library Millage Ballot Question  

 

February 15, 2024 

 

 



 

 

TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY  

MILLAGE PROPOSAL 

This proposal is to restore the full amount of the 1996 millage that 

was approved by the voters in the amount of 1.1 mills beginning 

with the December 2024 tax levy in order to provide funds for the 

Traverse Area District Library for the next 10 years.   

For the purpose of providing funds for the Traverse Area District 

Library for all district library purposes authorized by law at an 

increased millage level, shall the previous voted annual tax rate 

which may be levied against all taxable property within the 

Traverse Area District Library district, Grand Traverse County, 

and a portion of Leelanau County, Michigan, be increased and 

shall the Traverse Area District Library be authorized to levy up to 

1.1 mills ($1.10 per $1,000 of taxable value) as a new, additional 

millage annually for 10  years, beginning 2024 through 2033, 

inclusive?  

If approved and levied in full, this millage will generate an 

estimated $8,020,750.00 in revenue for the Traverse Area District 

Library in the first calendar year of the levy (2024). 

By law, a portion of the millage may be disbursed to other 

governmental entities that capture property taxes within their 

jurisdictions. These are the Grand Traverse County Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority, Grand Traverse County Land Bank 

Authority, and the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment 

Authority. 

o Yes 

o No   

1. If the proposition is approved, the Traverse Area District Library shall not levy the 2016 

Millage beginning with the 2024 levy for the remainder of its term.   

2. All Public Officials of Grand Traverse County and Leelanau County, State of Michigan, 

and all Governmental units thereof, within such time as shall be required by law, are 

requested to perform all acts which shall be necessary to be performed in order to submit 

the above stated proposition to the duly qualified voters within the Traverse Area District 

Library district at the election to be held within the territory of the Traverse Area District 

Library, on Tuesday, August 6, 2024, including publishing the notice of the election and 

the close of registration in the manner required by law and the District Library 

Establishment Act. 



 

 

3. The President is authorized to make any non-substantive changes to the proposed ballot 

language or notices authorized by this Resolution if changes are requested by the County 

Clerks or other person or entity authorized by law and said changes comply with the 

Michigan Election Law and are consistent with the law governing district libraries. 

 

 

 

Motion to adopt the resolution was introduced by:  ________________________________ 

 

And supported by:               ________________________________ 

 

Motion adopted     Yes     /     No            ______________  

                (date)     

 

_______________________________ 

M. Vickery, Board Secretary    

 



 
BOARD MEMO 

TO: TADL BOARD 

FROM: MICHELE P HOWARD, MILS 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR CARPETING  

DATE: 2/15/2024 

  

Bret Boulter has been investigating replacing areas of our carpet that are very worn and 
could possibly be a hazard. While we had initially thought this would be within my spending 
limit, it is estimated to be over $35,000.   

I am requesting the Board approve putting out a Request for Proposals for replacement 
carpeting in a few specific areas on the first and second floors, including the first floor lobby.  

















 
BOARD MEMO 

TO: TADL BOARD 

FROM: MICHELE P HOWARD, MILS 

SUBJECT: BOARD RETREAT  

DATE: 2/15/2024 

  

The topic of a board retreat has generated a lot of discussion. Below is a sample agenda based on 
input from Board members.   
 

1. Discussion 

a. Homeless Shelter Issues 

b. Millage 

1. Yes Committee Progress  

2. Pass: Plans for increased funding (useable in Yes Committee Campaign) 

3. Fail:  Plan to go back to the ballot 

c. Literacy Focus 2024 

1. Facts in TADL Service Area 

2. Commitment to Support/Address  

d. Future of Public Libraries/Spaces 

1. Common issues in all libraries 

2. Technology’s Role & Makerspaces  

3. Historical Preservation  

4. Limits of TADL resources 

e. Anchor Institutions and Public Health 

Additionally, I would like to proposed, based on Trustees suggestions, to cancel the retreat and 
instead focus on specific topics at future Board meetings. Additionally, I think we should plan a 
retreat for 2025 to serve as the Kick Off for the next Strategic Plan. 

Discussion Topics: 
February   Homeless Shelter 
March   Reading Month- TADL and Regional Literacy 
April  Technology of the Future in Libraries 
May  SWOT analysis of Future Libraries 
June  Facilities and future needs 
July   no meeting 
August  Millage Results and Moving Forward 
September Historic Preservation 
October Public Health and TADL 
November Budget Hearing 
December Budget Adjustment  


	2024-02-15 Regular Board Meeting Agenda for web
	2024-01-18 Regular Board Meeting Minutes - ABM
	Departmental Reports for the Board, February 2024
	Finance & Facilities Committee 2024-02-06 AGENDA
	Policy & Personnel Committee 2024-02-06 AGENDA web
	2024-01 January Financial Report Analysis
	2024-01 January Board Finance Report
	PCL director Report 2024-02-15
	Director Report 2024-02-15 with supplemental materials
	Resolution - Supporting  Library Millage Ballot Language 2024-02-15
	Board Memo February 2024 RFP Carpeting.docx
	2023 Year-end Review from Director 2024-02-15 packet
	Board Memo February 2024 Board Retreat

